
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA
Beloit City Plan Commission

Wednesday, May 22, 2013 at 7:00 PM
The Forum

Beloit City Hall, First Floor
100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Nomination and Election of Officers

a. Nomination and Election of Chairperson
b. Nomination and Election of Vice-Chairperson

3. Approval of the Minutes of the April 17, 2013 Meeting

4. Conditional Use Permit – 903, 911 and 915 Broad Street
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow the
expansion of an existing gas station with underground fuel tanks in a Wellhead Protection
Overlay District, for the properties located at 903, 911 and 915 Broad Street

5. Conditional Use Permit - 1227 Liberty Avenue
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a church in
an R-1B, Single Family Residential District, for the property located at 1227 Liberty Avenue

6. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items

7. Adjournment

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at
364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting.

Notice Mailed: May 17, 2013 Approved: Julie Christensen
Community Development Director



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511

MINUTES
BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Wednesday, April 17, 2013
The Forum, Beloit City Hall

100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Gail Riddle called the roll.
Present were Commissioners Jacobsen, Faragher, Seifarth, Moore, Kelley, and Kincaid.
Commissioner Smith was absent.

2. Approval of the Minutes of the April 3, 2013 Meeting
Commissioner Faragher moved and Commissioner Seifarth seconded a motion to approve the
April 3, 2013 minutes. The minutes were approved. (6-0)

3. Zoning Map Amendment – 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-family Residential District, to M-1, Limited
Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard

Julie Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Chairperson Ramsden opened the Public Hearing.

Andrew Janke, Economic Development Director for the City of Beloit, was present and reviewed
history of the park.

Commissioner Seifarth commented that there is no interest in the land right now and wanted
to know why we expect there to be interest if it was changed to M-1. Mr. Janke answered that
the Gateway has built out significantly. He added that the more diverse the inventory is, the
more opportunities they can offer. Mr. Janke stated that they think the industrial market has
the most potential and they get the most requests for industrial development.

Mr. Kincaid commented that this was a part of the City’s marketing strategy, but he hopes that
the multi-family market opens up in the future, but in the meantime we should sell what we
can in the Gateway.

Chairperson Ramsden closed the Public Hearing.



Commissioner Seifarth moved to approve the Zoning Map Amendment and Commissioner
Faragher seconded the motion. The motion carried. (6-0)

4. Certified Survey Map – 2220 Liberty Avenue
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2220
Liberty Avenue in the City of Beloit

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Commissioner Faragher moved to approve the Certified Survey Map and Commissioner Kelly
seconded the motion. The motion approved. (6-0)

5. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 2655 W. Finley Road
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on 2655
W. Finley Road in the Town of Beloit

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Recommendation.

Commissioner Kincaid asked if the property was suitable for septic fields. Ms. Christensen
answered that she did not know but they would have to go to the county for that.

Commissioner Seifarth moved to approve the Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map and
Commissioner Moore seconded the motion. The motion carried. (6-0)

6. Zoning Map Amendment – 1533 W. Grand Avenue and 1528 and 1532 Forest Avenue
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District, for the properties located at 1533 W. Grand Avenue and 1528 and 1532
Forest Avenue

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Chairperson Ramsden opened the Public Hearing.

Jason Schoville, 1547 W. Grand Avenue, was present and commented that he heard there were
rumors to expand more to the west. Ms. Christensen commented that they had received a
Comprehensive Plan Amendment for two more properties on W. Grand Avenue but have not
received plans for how they would be used.

Chairperson Ramsden closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner Jacobsen moved and Commissioner Seifarth seconded a motion to approve the
Zoning Map Amendment. The motion carried. (6-0)



7. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
The Zoning Map Amendment for Hackett School was approved as well as the Zoning and the
Conditional Use for 501 Prospect. Permanent Zoning for 1035 and 1041 Udell was also
approved by City Council.

Commissioner Charles Ramsden was presented with a certificate in recognition of his six years
of service with the Plan Commission.

8. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 7:17 PM.



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: May 22, 2013 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CU-2013-06

Applicant: Joe Stadelman, Angus
Young Associates

Owner: Bindi R. Inc. Location: 903, 911, & 915 Broad Street

Existing Zoning: C-3, Community
Commercial District & WPO, Wellhead
Protection Overlay District

Existing Land Use: Gas Station &
Vacant Land

Total Area: 0.5 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Joe Stadelman of Angus Young Associates, on behalf of Bindi R. Inc., has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to
allow the expansion of an existing gas station with underground fuel tanks in a Wellhead Protection Overlay District, for the
properties located at 903, 911, & 915 Broad Street.

Key Issues:
 The City Council adopted the Wellhead Protection Ordinance on April 1, 2013. While new underground fuel tanks are

prohibited in the Wellhead Protection Overlay District, existing nonconforming businesses are eligible to seek a
Conditional Use Permit in order to expand.

 The owner of the Clark Station at 903 Broad Street has acquired the adjacent, vacant parcels located at 911 & 915
Broad Street and has proposed the redevelopment of all three parcels. The applicant has proposed the construction of
a new 2,310 square-foot convenience store, a new canopy over realigned gas pumps, the reconfiguration of the
driveways, the replacement of all underground fuel tanks, and numerous site improvements. The existing store and
canopy will be demolished.

 The existing tank system consists of three single-walled steel tanks with a combined capacity of 25,000 gallons of
unleaded gasoline. The tanks and single-walled lines were installed between 1969 and 1979, and according to the
applicant’s consultants, the tanks are beyond their life expectancy.

 The proposed tank system consists of three double-walled fiberglass tanks with a combined capacity of 32,000 gallons
of unleaded gasoline and diesel, along with double-walled poly lines. The proposed tank system includes a monitoring
system that will continuously monitor the tanks and lines for leaks. The system will be inspected annually.

 The Wellhead Technical Review Committee met on May 6
th

to consider this request and voted unanimously (4-0) to
recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit.

 The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the underlying zoning of the
surrounding area. The entire area is included in the WPO District. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

o North: C-1, Office District; Single- and Two-Family Dwellings
o South: C-3, Community Commercial District; Commercial (Walgreen’s)
o East: C-1, Office District; Two-Family Dwelling
o West: C-3, Community Commercial District; Auto Repair

 The City’s Landscape Code does not require a landscape buffer between the subject properties and the adjacent
residential uses because all of the affected properties have a Commercial (C) zoning district classification.

 Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the applicant will need to submit detailed site & architectural plans for Planning
staff review and approval.

 A preliminary site plan, environmental report, fuel system description, spill plan, tank diagrams, and application are
attached to this report.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have not submitted any comments or concerns.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to twelve nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff has been contacted by

one nearby property owner who supports this project.
 Findings of Fact

Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on
the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 The proposed replacement of outdated fuel tanks with a state-of-the-art tank and monitoring
system will diminish the potential for wellhead contamination.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street

 The proposed gas station and convenience store are permitted in the C-3 district.
c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood

of the subject property;
 On the contrary, the proposed improvement of this commercial property is likely to enhance

property values within the area.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and

improvement of the surrounding property;
 The surrounding area is fully developed.

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or
otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will
cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed architectural design and site layout are compatible with the existing development
with respect to design, materials, and function.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve
the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use.
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

 The existing southern driveway that conflicts with the Broad Street traffic lanes will be removed
and a new driveway near the eastern end of the site will be installed, thereby reducing congestion
and improving the safety of this intersection.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial uses for the subject properties, and the underlying C-3
zoning district classification is consistent with this recommendation. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit
Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow the expansion of an
existing gas station with underground fuel tanks in a Wellhead Protection Overlay District, for the properties located at 903,
911, & 915 Broad Street, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the replacement of the existing underground fuel tanks on the property located
at 903 Broad Street as part of a comprehensive redevelopment that includes the construction of a new 2,310 square-
foot convenience store, a new canopy over realigned gas pumps, the reconfiguration of the driveways, and numerous
site improvements on the properties located at 903, 911, & 915 Broad Street.

2. The applicant and/or owner shall provide copies of all federal, state, and local facility operation approval or certificates
and on-going environmental monitoring results to the City.

3. The applicant shall establish the fuel system, monitoring system, and safety procedures that are described and
illustrated in the application and attachments.

4. The applicant shall prepare, file, and maintain a current contingency plan which details the response to any emergency
which occurs at the facility, including notifying municipal, county, and state officials.

5. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate and
a Certificate of Zoning Compliance. The applicant shall combine the parcels before these certificates will be issued.

6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and
City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve
minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Site Plan, Application & Attachments, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 22 Staff Report, CUP, 903 Broad Street



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: May 22, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CU-2013-05 

Applicant: Garry Hutchinson 

 

Owner: New Life Tabernacle, Inc. Location: 1227 Liberty Avenue 

Existing Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District 

Existing Land Use: Vacant Building Parcel Size: .59 Acre 
 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Garry Hutchinson, on behalf of New Life Tabernacle, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a church in 
an R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at 1227 Liberty Avenue.  
 
The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The adjacent zoning and 
land uses are as follows: 
 North: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-family dwellings 
 South: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-family dwellings 
 East: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-family dwellings 
 West: PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District; Hinckley Park 
 
Churches are a conditional use in R-1B districts. The justification for requiring a Conditional Use Permit is to allow the City 
Council to evaluate how the proposed use will affect the surrounding land uses. If the proposed use is approved, the City 
Council is authorized to impose conditions it deems necessary to reduce or minimize any potential adverse effects on 
surrounding properties. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The subject property is located at the intersection of Liberty Avenue and Moore Street, and is across the street from 
Hinckley Park. 

 In 2009, a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) was granted to allow a day care center as the principal use and civic and 
religious assembly as a secondary use, however, the owner did not establish the use and the CUP expired. 

 Because the principal use of the property was changed in 2009 from a church to a day care center, a Conditional Use 
Permit is required before a church can be reestablished in a residential district. 

 Mr. Hutchinson recently purchased the property and desires to establish a church as the principal use. 
 The proposed church would operate on Sundays from 9am to 9pm, and three days during the week from 8am to 5pm. 
 Mr. Hutchinson has intentions to renovate the interior of the building and make a number of site improvements to the 

exterior of the property, which includes restriping the off-street parking lot, increasing the driveway apron from 16-feet 
to 20-feet, and updating landscaping and signage.  

 Evergreen bushes have been removed from the west side of the property, near the ground sign. Staff recommends 
that plants be placed around the foundation of the building on the south and west sides due to high visibility from both 
streets.    

 The subject property includes a building that was constructed in 1950, two signs, an unenclosed dumpster, and an off-
street parking lot that is accessible from Moore Street. The unenclosed dumpster will have to be screened from view.  

 The off-street parking lot contains an estimated thirteen (13) parking stalls including one accessible parking stall. No 
concrete wheel stops are present in any of the parking stalls. 

 Currently, no seats or pews are present in the building; however, Mr. Hutchinson has proposed to place 80-seats 
in the building for services after renovating the interior of the building. A floor plan is included in this report.  

 The Zoning Ordinance requires one parking stall per four seats, which would be 20 parking stalls. In addition, 1-parking 
stall must be made accessible and all parking stalls must be provided with a concrete wheel stop. 

 According to the Traffic Engineer, the proposed facility will generate 141 vehicle trips during peak hours on Sunday. 
Both Moore Street and Liberty Avenue are capable of handling the traffic.  

 If the Conditional Use Permit is authorized, the applicant will proceed with minor changes to the exterior of the building. 
 Staff sent the attached Public Notice to nineteen nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff has not received any 

comments or questions about the proposed use. 
 Several photographs of the subject property are attached to this report. 
 Public facilities and infrastructure exist in this area and the property receives the full range of municipal services. 
 All City review agents have reviewed this Conditional Use Permit application and do not have any comments or 

concerns regarding the proposed conditional use. 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx 

 Findings of Fact 
Based on Section 2.5.4 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on 
the following considerations: 

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

 The establishment, maintenance, and operation of the conditional use will not be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. 

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for purposes already permitted; 

 The proposed conditional use will not negatively impact the enjoyment of the surrounding 
properties. 

 An institutional use at this location has co-existed with the surrounding residential neighborhood 
for many years. 

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood 
of the subject property; 

 The conditional use will not substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood of the subject property.  

 The occupancy and exterior improvement of the subject property will have a positive impact on 
property values. 

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property; 

 The surrounding area is already developed. The establishment of the conditional use will not 
impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of the surrounding property. 

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or 
otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will 
cause a depreciation in property values; 

 All exterior changes will be subject to the Architectural Review Code, which will ensure 
compatibility with the immediate neighborhood. 

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve 
the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use; 

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the proposed use. 
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and  

 The proposed conditional use will not cause traffic congestion. In addition, the applicant intends to 
widen the driveway apron and restripe the off-street parking lot to increase the number of parking 
stalls, which may improve the internal traffic flow and circulation of the site.  

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of this chapter (the Zoning 
Ordinance). 

 The conditional use will comply will all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan designates this property for long-term single-family residential uses. However, the 
Comprehensive Plan states that single-family residential areas should include limited institutional uses (e.g. churches). The 
proposed conditional use is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 

 

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both 
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines) 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The reuse of this building may potentially reduce dependence upon fossil 
fuels by increasing the availability of a church in close proximity to existing neighborhoods. The adaptive reuse of this 
building will capitalize on the embodied energy that is present in the building.  

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 
 
 
 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a church use in an   
R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at 1227 Liberty Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact 
and subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the establishment of a church within the existing building on the property 
located at 1227 Liberty Avenue, if the other conditions are satisfied. 

2. The max seating capacity shall be four times the number of stalls in the off-street parking lot. 
3. The applicant shall stripe all proposed parking stalls a minimum of 9-feet in width by 18-feet in length. Parking stalls 

must be striped in epoxy paint that is white in color and shall be maintained during the tenure of the property owner.    
4. The applicant shall establish one handicap accessible parking stall and aisle for the off-street parking lot. This 

accessible parking stall shall be van-accessible and include an 8-foot wide access aisle abutting the designated 
parking stall, and shall be striped in epoxy paint that is blue in color. The accessible parking stall must also include an 
ADA parking sign. 

5. The applicant shall provide concrete wheel stops for each off-street parking stall. The concrete wheel stops shall be 
positioned in a way that preserves a four (4) foot walkway between parked vehicles and the building. 

6. The applicant shall meet the minimum aisle width requirements specified in Section 8-113 of the Zoning Code. 
7. All trash and recycling containers shall be enclosed. The applicant must obtain an Architectural Review Certificate prior 

to the establishment of a dumpster enclosure on the subject property.  
8. Foundation plantings shall be established and maintained on the south and west sides of the building on the subject 

property during the tenure of the property owner.  
9. The applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate and Sign Permit prior to the establishment or 

replacement of outdoor signage for the subject property. 
10. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and 

City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services Director may approve minor 
changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses that comply with and meet all of the standards and 
requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 

 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Property Photos, Floor Plan, Parking Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing 
List.



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx 

 
 
 

Parking Lot 

(As viewed from Moore Street) 

 

 

 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx 

 
 
 

South Side of Building 

(As viewed from Liberty Avenue) 

 

 

 

West Side of Building 

(As viewed from Moore Street) 

 

 

 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Ground Sign 

(As viewed from Moore Street) 

 

 

 

Pole Sign 

(As viewed from Liberty Avenue) 

 

 

 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx  

 

 

Floor Plan 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx  

Parking Plan 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx  

 

  



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx  



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx 

 



May 21 Staff Report,CUP, 1227 Liberty Avenue.docx  


	Call to Order and Roll Call
	Nomination and Election of Officers
	Approval of the Minutes of the April 17, 2013 Meeting
	Conditional Use Permit - 903, 911, & 915 Broad Street
	Conditional Use Permit - 1227 Liberty Avenue
	Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
	Adjournment

